

Council Meeting

Minutes

Tuesday, 27 September 2022 Civic Centre, 15 Anderson Street, Lilydale

Information for Councillors and the community

ACKNOWLEDGEMENT OF COUNTRY

We respectfully acknowledge the Traditional Owners, the Wurundjeri People, as the Custodians of this land. We also pay respect to all Aboriginal community Elders, past and present, who have resided in the area and have been an integral part of the history of this region.



COUNCIL VISION

Whether you live here or visit, you will see how much we care for country, how inclusive and connected our communities are, and how sustainable balanced growth makes this the best place in the world.

VALUE OF HISTORY

We acknowledge that history shapes our identities, engages us as citizens, creates inclusive communities, is part of our economic well-being, teaches us to think critically and creatively, inspires leaders and is the foundation of our future generations.

COUNCILLOR COMMITMENT

We'll be truthful, represent the community's needs, be positive and responsive and always strive to do better.

OUR COUNCILLORS

Billanook Ward: Tim Heenan Chandler Ward: David Eastham Chirnside Ward: Richard Higgins Lyster Ward: Johanna Skelton Melba Ward: Sophie Todorov O'Shannassy Ward: Jim Child Ryrie Ward: Fiona McAllister Streeton Ward: Andrew Fullagar Walling Ward: Len Cox

CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER & DIRECTORS

Chief Executive Officer, Tammi Rose Director Communities, Jane Price Director Corporate Services, Andrew Hilson Director Recovery, Jane Sinnamon Director Environment & Infrastructure, Bill Millard Director Planning Design & Development, Kath McClusky

GOVERNANCE RULES

All Council and Delegated Committee meetings are to be conducted in accordance with Council's Governance Rules, which can be viewed at: <u>https://www.yarraranges.vic.gov.au/Council/Corporate-documents/Policies-strategies/Governance-rules</u>

PUBLIC PARTICIPATION IN MEETINGS

Members of the community can participate in Council meetings in any of the following ways:

- making a verbal submission for up to 5 minutes on matters not listed on the agenda.
- submitting a question.
- speaking for up to 5 minutes to a specific item on the agenda. For planning applications and policy issues, the Chair will invite one person to speak on behalf of any objectors and one person to speak on behalf of the applicant. For other matters on the agenda, only one person will be invited to address Council, unless there are opposing views. At the discretion of the Chair, additional speakers may be invited for items of large interest.
- speaking for up to 5 minutes to a petition to be presented at a meeting.

For further information about how to participate in a Council meeting, please visit: <u>https://www.yarraranges.vic.gov.au/Council/Council-meetings/Submissions-questions-petitions-to-Council</u>

LIVE STREAMING AND RECORDING OF MEETINGS

Council and Delegated Committee meetings will be live streamed and recorded with the video recording being published on Council's website. Council will cease live streaming at the direction of the Chair or prior to any confidential items being considered.

Opinions or statements made during the course of a meeting are those of the particular individuals. Council does not necessarily endorse or support the views, opinions, standards or information contained in the live streaming or recording of meetings. While Council will use its best endeavours to ensure the live stream and Council's website are functioning, technical issues may arise which may result in Council temporarily adjourning the meeting or, if the issue cannot be resolved, adjourning the meeting to another date and time to be determined.

A person in attendance at the meeting must not operate film, photographic, tape-recording or other equipment to reproduce sound and/or images at any meeting without first obtaining the consent of the Chair.

The Minutes produced after each Council Meeting form the official record of the decisions made by Yarra Ranges Council.

VIEWING THIS AGENDA ON A MOBILE DEVICE



The free modern.gov app enables you to download papers for our meetings on Apple, Android and Windows devices. When you first open the app you will be asked to 'Subscribe to Publishers' – simply select Yarra Ranges Council from the list of councils. The App allows you to select the meetings you are interested in and it will then automatically keep itself updated with all the latest meeting agendas and minutes.

EVACUATION PROCEDURES

In the case of an emergency during a meeting held at the Civic Centre, 15 Anderson Street, Lilydale, you should follow the directions given by staff and evacuate the building using the nearest available exit. You should congregate at the assembly point at Hardy Street car park.

CONTACT US

Post	PO Box 105, Anderson Street
Telephone	1300 368 333
Facsimile	(03) 9735 4249
Email	mail@yarraranges.vic.gov.au

Index to Minutes

ITEN	Λ	PAGE NO	
1.	COU	NCIL MEETING OPENED6	
2.	ACK	NOWLDGEMENT OF COUNTRY6	
3.	INTR	ODUCTION OF MEMBERS PRESENT6	
4.	APO	LOGIES AND LEAVE OF ABSENCE6	
5.	MAY	ORAL ANNOUNCEMENTS6	
6.	CON	FIRMATION OF MINUTES OF PREVIOUS MEETINGS6	
7.	DISC	LOSURE OF CONFLICTS OF INTEREST7	
8.	QUE	STIONS AND SUBMISSIONS FROM THE PUBLIC7	
9.	PETI	TIONS	
10.	BUSINESS PAPER8		
	10.1	2023-2027 Partnership Program8	
	10.2	Domestic Animal Management Plan9	
	10.3	Change of Representatives to Eastern Regional Library Corporation	
	10.4	Alfred Street and John Street, Wandin North – Declaration of Special Charge10	
	10.5	Bretby Way, Montrose - Declaration of Special Charge11	
	10.6	Tainton Street and Railway Parade, Wandin North - Declaration of Special Charge.12	
	10.7	Cedar Court, Burns Way (Includes harvest Close), Loch Avenue, Mayview Drive, Monbulk - Declaration of Special Charge13	
	10.8	Henry Street, Lester Street and Everard Grove, Woori Yallock - Intent to Levy a Special Charge	
	10.9	Henry Street, Yarra Junction - Intent to Levy a Special Charge	
	10.10	Capital Grants Development Program18	
11.	COU	NCILLOR MOTIONS19	
12.	ITEM	IS THROUGH THE CHAIR19	
13.	REP	ORTS FROM DELEGATES20	
14.	DOC	UMENTS FOR SIGNING AND SEALING	
15.	INFO	RMAL MEETING OF COUNCILLORS20	
16.	URG	ENT BUSINESS	
17.	CON	FIDENTIAL ITEMS	

18.	DATE OF NEXT MEETING	21
-----	----------------------	----

YARRA RANGES COUNCIL

MINUTES FOR THE XXX COUNCIL MEETING HELD ON TUESDAY, 27 SEPTEMBER 2022 COMMENCING AT 7.00 PM CIVIC CENTRE, 15 ANDERSON STREET, LILYDALE

1 COUNCIL MEETING OPENED

Councillor Jim Child (Mayor) declared the meeting open.

2 ACKNOWLDGEMENT OF COUNTRY

The Mayor then read the Acknowledgement of Country, and welcomed all present.

3 INTRODUCTION OF MEMBERS PRESENT

Councillors

Councillor Jim Child (Mayor)

Councillor Andrew Fullagar Councillor Fiona McAllister Councillor David Eastham Councillor Tim Heenan Councillor Richard Higgins Councillor Sophie Todorov

Officers

Andrew Hilson, Director Corporate Services Kath McClusky, Director Planning, Design and Development Jane Sinnamon, Director Recovery Allison Southwell, Manager Financial Services Bill Millard, Director Environment & Infrastructure Ben Waterhouse

4 APOLOGIES AND LEAVE OF ABSENCE

Councillor Johanna Skelton (Deputy Mayor) Councillor Len Cox OAM Tammi Rose, Chief Executive Officer Jane Price, Director Communities

5 MAYORAL ANNOUNCEMENTS

There were no Mayoral Announcements for this meeting.

6 CONFIRMATION OF MINUTES OF PREVIOUS MEETINGS

Moved: Seconded: Cr McAllister	Cr	Heenan
That the Minutes of the C circulated, be confirmed.	Council Meeting held	13 September 2022 as
The motion was Carried u	unanimously.	

7 DISCLOSURE OF CONFLICTS OF INTEREST

In accordance with Chapter 7, Rule 4, of the Governance Rules developed by Council in accordance with section 60 of the Local Government Act 2020.

Cr David Eastham declared a general conflict in respect of Item 10.7 as it relates to his place of residence.

8 QUESTIONS AND SUBMISSIONS FROM THE PUBLIC

In accordance with Chapter 3, Rules 57 and 59, of the Governance Rules developed by Council in accordance with section 60 of the Local Government Act 2020.

QUESTIONS FROM THE PUBLIC

Angela Jones, of Wandin North, asked:

How much is Council paying for LGBTQ+ workplace diversity & inclusion training and who is delivering that service/advice?

Allison Southwell, Acting Director Corporate Services responded:

Thank you Ms Jones for your question.

In financial year 2022/23, Council has a budget of approximately \$39,000 which will go towards a range of activities aimed at the professional development of our workforce in Diversity and Inclusion and related fields. LGBTQI+ training is an important component but is just one of many aspects of Diversity & Inclusion covered by that budget. Council's Organisational Development team consults widely in determining how that budget should be directed, including with an internal Diversity & Inclusion working group, which is made up of a cross-section of our workforce.

At present, we have no LGBTQI+ specific training scheduled with any provider.

Ensuring a diverse and inclusive workforce that represents the community we serve is an important objective of our Council Plan, and we publicly report on progress in each annual report.

There were no Submissions listed on the Agenda for this meeting.

9 PETITIONS

In accordance with Chapter 3, Rule 60, of the Governance Rules developed by Council in accordance with section 60 of the Local Government Act 2020.

There were no Petitions received for this meeting.

10 BUSINESS PAPER

10.1 2023-2027 Partnership Program

SUMMARY

Council makes an important and targeted investment in its communities through a variety of grants programs. The multi-year Partnership Program offers key service providers, community and cultural groups the opportunity to secure recurring funding to support delivery of vital community services, facilitating positive social change, and celebrating the diversity and cultural uniqueness of the Yarra Ranges.

The current Partnership Program concludes on 30 June 2023.

This report presents proposed program guidelines and criteria for the 2023-2027 Partnership Program (Attachment 1: 2023-2027 Partnership Program Guidelines and Selection Criteria), budget implications and findings and recommendations from the 2018-2022 Partnership Program and proposed 2023-2027 Partnership Program assessment panel members.

Pending Council approval, the 2023-2027 Partnership Program is scheduled to open for applications on 1 October 2022.

Moved: Cr Fullagar Seconded: Cr Todorov

That Council

- **1.** Endorse the 2023-2027 Partnership Program guidelines and selection criteria;
- **2.** Endorse the 2022-2023 allocation of \$498,575.00 to the program as follows:
- \$330,000.00 Connected & Healthy Communities stream; and
- \$168,575.00 Creative Communities stream;
- **3.** Endorse an annual adjustment for subsequent 2024-2027 payments in line with rate capping; and
- **4.** Note the 2018-2022 Partnership Program review findings and recommendations and the proposed 2023-2027

Partnership Program assessment panel members.

The motion was Carried unanimously.

10.2 Domestic Animal Management Plan

SUMMARY

Yarra Ranges Council is required to prepare a Domestic Animal Management Plan (DAMP) at four-year intervals under the *Domestic Animals Act 1994*. The plan is required to be developed in consultation with the Department of Jobs, Planning and Resources (DJPR).

The Draft DAMP 2022-2026 has been developed in accordance with best practice standards and informed by current available data, research, and a continued consultation process. The initial online survey attracted over 460 responses from community and business, which highlighted key themes that have been included in the Draft DAMP.

Further community consultation is recommended to be conducted during September and October 2022 to draw out community perspective and identify any further opportunities and challenges that could be recognised and addressed through the DAMP.

To ensure Council is meeting its legislative responsibilities, a final Council endorsed DAMP is required to be submitted to DJPR by 2 December 2022.

Moved: Seconded: Cr Heenan	Cr	Eastham
That Council endorse the Draft Domestic Animal Management Plan 2022- 2026 for public consultation.		
The motion was Carried	l unanimously.	

10.3 Change of Representatives to Eastern Regional Library Corporation

SUMMARY

Councillors are appointed annually to a number of committees and external bodies that require Council representation. Included in this is Council's nominated delegates to the Eastern Regional Library Corporation (ERLC). At its meeting on 23 November 2021, Council endorsed Cr Len Cox and Cr Fiona McAllister as its representatives to the ERLC for the following 12 months.

Following the introduction of the *Local Government Act 2020,* the ERLC is currently being wound up in accordance with s330(4) and a beneficial enterprise, known as Your Library Ltd, will be established in accordance with s110 to deliver library services on behalf of Yarra Ranges, City of Knox, and City of Maroondah Councils.

At its meeting on 28 June 2022, Council endorsed the appointment of Cr Jim Child and Cr Andrew Fullagar as the inaugural directors of Your Library Ltd to represent Yarra Ranges Council. At this time, however, Crs Child and Fullagar are unable to formally contribute to the discussions and decision making relating to the transition from the ERLC to Your Library Ltd, as these matters are being addressed by the ERLC.

In order to ensure a smooth transition and that decisions which require formal approval include those Councillors who will be involved in the future of Your Library Ltd, it is recommended that Council appoint Crs Child and Fullagar as its representatives to the ERLC (replacing Crs Cox and McAllister) until it has been wound up and the new entity takes over library operations.

Moved: Seconded: Cr McAlliste	Cr	Child
	he appointment of Cr Jim Regional Library Corporat ster.	
The motion was Carried	d unanimously.	

10.4 Alfred Street and John Street, Wandin North – Declaration of Special Charge

SUMMARY

Following an extensive consultation process with landowners, Council at its meeting of 26 July 2022 considered a report on road improvement works for Alfred Street and John Street, Wandin North. Council resolved to advise of its intention to declare a special charge in accordance with the provisions of Section 163 of the Local Government Act 1989.

This report advises that one submission has been received regarding the Special Charge and recommends that Council declare the Special Charge without modification.

Move Seco	ed: Cr onded: Cr Heenan	Eastham
That		
1.	Council, having given notice of its intention, reviewed the the proposed special charge and given conside submissions hereto, declare the special charge associated with the Alfred Street and John Street, Wa Special Charge Scheme in accordance with the pro Section 163 of the Local Government Act 1988 modification.	eration of for works ndin North ovisions of
5.	In accordance with the provisions of Section 223 of Government Act 1989, notice in writing be served on ev who has lodged a separate submission and in the	ery person

submission lodged on behalf of a number of persons, notice in writing to one of those persons, advising of Council's decision and the reasons for the decision.

6. In accordance with the provisions of Section 163 of the Local Government Act 1989, notice be served upon all persons liable for the special charge advising of Council's decision and that persons aggrieved by Council's imposition of the special charge upon them, may apply to the Victorian Civil and Administrative Tribunal within 30 days of effective issue of the notice, for a review of the decision.

The motion was Carried unanimously.

10.5 Bretby Way, Montrose - Declaration of Special Charge

SUMMARY

Following an extensive consultation process with landowners, Council at its meeting of 12 July 2022 considered a report on road improvement works for Bretby Way, Montrose. Council resolved to advise of its intention to declare a special charge in accordance with the provisions of Section 163 of the Local Government Act 1989.

This report advises that three submissions have been received regarding the Special Charge and recommends that Council declare the Special Charge with modification.

Moved: Cr F Seconded: Cr Higgins		Fullagar	
That	L		
1.	Council, having given notice of its intention, reviewed the details of the proposed special charge and given consideration of submissions hereto, declare the special charge for works associated with the Bretby Way, Montrose Special Charge Scheme in accordance with the provisions of Section 163 of the Local Government Act 1989, with the following modifications:		
	(a)	The development unit allocation to property 13 Bro Montrose be reduced from 2 to 1 Unit.	etby Way,
	(b)	The development unit allocation to property 15 Bro Montrose be reduced from 2 to 1 Unit.	etby Way,
	(c)	The development unit allocation to property 19-21 Br Montrose be reduced from 2 to 1 Unit.	etby Way,
	(d)	The development unit allocation to property 31 Bro Montrose be reduced from 2 to 1 Unit.	etby Way,
	(e)	Council's contribution to the project be increase development units to offset the reduced contribution properties.	•

- 7. In accordance with the provisions of Section 223 of the Local Government Act 1989, notice in writing be served on every person who has lodged a separate submission and in the case of a submission lodged on behalf of a number of persons, notice in writing to one of those persons, advising of Council's decision and the reasons for the decision.
- 8. In accordance with the provisions of Section 163 of the Local Government Act 1989, notice be served upon all persons liable for the special charge advising of Council's decision and that persons aggrieved by Council's imposition of the special charge upon them, may apply to the Victorian Civil and Administrative Tribunal within 30 days of effective issue of the notice, for a review of the decision.

The motion was Carried unanimously.

10.6 Tainton Street and Railway Parade, Wandin North - Declaration of Special Charge

Cr Eastham left the meeting at 8:16pm prior to consideration of the item, having declared a conflict of interest in this item.

SUMMARY

Following an extensive consultation process with landowners, Council at its meeting of 26 July 2022 considered a report on road improvement works for Tainton Street and Railway Parade, Wandin North. Council resolved to advise of its intention to declare a special charge in accordance with the provisions of Section 163 of the Local Government Act 1989.

This report advises that no submissions have been received regarding the Special Charge and recommends that Council declare the Special Charge without modification.

Mov Sec	ved: Cr onded: Cr Todorov	Higgins
Tha	t	
1.	Council, having given notice of its intention, reviewed the proposed special charge and having received ne hereto, declare the special charge for works assoc Tainton Street and Railway Parade, Wandin North S Scheme in accordance with the provisions of Section Local Government Act 1989, without modification.	o submissions iated with the pecial Charge
2.	In accordance with the provisions of Section 163 Government Act 1989, notice be served upon all per the special charge advising of Council's decision and aggrieved by Council's imposition of the special charge may apply to the Victorian Civil and Administrative	sons liable for d that persons ge upon them,

30 days of effective issue of the notice, for a review of the decision.

The motion was Carried unanimously.

Cr Eastham returned to the meeting at 8:18pm following a vote being taken.

10.7 Cedar Court, Burns Way (Includes harvest Close), Loch Avenue, Mayview **Drive, Monbulk - Declaration of Special Charge**

SUMMARY

Following an extensive consultation process with landowners, Council at its meeting of 26 July 2022 considered a report on road improvement works for Cedar Court, Burns Way, Loch Avenue, Harvest Close and Mayview Drive, Monbulk. Council resolved to advise of its intention to declare a special charge in accordance with the provisions of Section 163 of the Local Government Act 1989.

This report advises that two submissions have been received regarding the Special Charge and recommends that Council declare the Special Charge with modification.

In accordance with Governance Rule 58, Christine Charstone spoke in support of the recommendation included in the officer report.

Movec Secon	l: Cr ded: Cr Higgins	Eastham
That		
t s a (Council, having given notice of its intention, reviewed the he proposed special charge and given conside submissions hereto, declare the special charge associated with the Cedar Court, Burns Way, Loch Avenu Close and Mayview Drive, Monbulk Special Charge S accordance with the provisions of Section 163 of Government Act 189, with the following modification.	eration of for works ıe, Harvest Scheme in
(á	 The development allocation to property 9 Harve Monbulk be reduced from 2 to 1 unit. 	est Close,
(council's contribution to the project be increased development unit to offset the reduced contribution property.	•
9.	In accordance with the provisions of Section 2 Local Government Act 1989, notice in writing be every person who has lodged a separate submission case of a submission lodged on behalf of a number of notice in writing to one of the those persons, a Council's decision and the reasons for the decision.	served on and in the of persons,
10	D. In accordance with the provisions of Section Local Government Act 1989, notice be served upon liable for the special charge advising of Council's de	all persons

that persons aggrieved by Council's imposition of the special charge upon them, may apply to the Victorian Civil and Administrative Tribunal within 30 days of effective issue of the notice, for a review of the decision.

The motion was Carried unanimously.

10.8 Henry Street, Lester Street and Everard Grove, Woori Yallock - Intent to Levy a Special Charge

SUMMARY

As part of its 2019 budgetary process, the Federal Government announced a nine year, \$150 Million funding initiative for Yarra Ranges Council to seal roads within the Dandenong Ranges and surrounding areas. This funding program has been named the Roads for the Community Initiative.

At its meeting on 24 September 2019 Council endorsed a list of roads to be constructed using this funding to be facilitated by means of Special Charge Schemes. Henry Street, Lester Street and Everard Grove, Woori Yallock were included on this list of roads.

This report recommends affected landowners be notified of Council's Intent to Levy a Special Charge for the construction of Henry Street, Lester Street and Everard Grove, Woori Yallock.

Moved: Cr Seconded: Cr Heenan		•	Fullagar
That	L		
1.	The affected landowners be advised of Council's intent to declare a special charge ("the special charge") at its meeting scheduled for 22 November 2022, or should this meeting not proceed then the next available Council meeting, for the purpose of defraying expenses associated with proposed improvement works in:		
	(a)	Henry Street, Lester Street and Everard Gro Yallock.	ove, Woori
11.	Subject to any variation of a scheme under Section 166 of the Local Government Act 1989, the amount to be levied under the scheme exclusive of interest payable under Section 172 of the Local Government Act 1989 will be:		he scheme
	(a)	Henry Street, Lester Street and Everard Grove, Wo In total \$349,199 ("the amount to be paid"); compr the cost of works \$294,000 and \$55,199 for financing	ising of for
	(b)	On each date specified under Section 167 of Government Act 1989 as being the date on which the rates and charges (other than special rates and o	ne whole of

due ("the due date") the amount represented by the formula: X/Y where X represents the amount to be paid and Y represents the number of due dates during the period which the scheme will remain in force.

- **12.** In accordance with Section 163 (3) of the Local Government Act 1989 Council specifies that the special charge:
 - (a) Is proposed to be declared for the land in the "designated area" shown on the attached plan.
 - (b) Will be payable in respect of all rateable land within the designated area.
 - (c) Will be assessed and levied as set out in this resolution.
 - (d) Will remain in force for the period commencing on 1 July 2023 and concluding on 30 June 2033.
 - (e) Will expire if the special charge is not levied to each person liable to pay it within 12 months after the day on which the declaration to which the rate or charge relates is made.
- 4. In accordance with Section 221 of the Local Government Act 1989 the special charge is also proposed to be declared in respect of land within the designated area which is not rateable land and is not Crown land.
- 5. It is recorded that assessment of the special charge is calculated on the following basis:
 - (a) \$7,000 per development unit.
 - (b) Plus financing cost of 3.755% per annum.
 - (c) 100% on a development unit basis as follows.
 - (i) Special benefit where a dwelling or building is permitted.
 - (ii) The degree of special benefit having regard to the use or future use of the land.
- 6. The amount assessed, based on the assessment factors, is set out in the attached schedule of costs per property for the scheme.
- 7. In accordance with section 167 (4) of the Local Government Act 1989, landowners be offered an option to repay their charge as a lump sum payment. For landowners to undertake this option, full payment is to be made by 15 February 2024, and the proportion of the cost to finance the scheme attributable to the property is to be deducted from the total charge.
- 8. The Chief Executive Officer be authorised to give public notice of the intent to declare the special charge in accordance with Section 163 (1A) and 223 of the Local Government Act 1989 in The Star Mail

newspapers and on Council's Internet Website.

- 9. If required a consultation meeting with appropriate Council Officers, be arranged to discuss any submissions received relating to the Special Charge.
- 10. If submissions are made:
 - (a) Those submissions be considered, and any person (or their representative as specified in their submission) who has requested to be heard in support of their submission be heard, by a meeting of Council scheduled for 22 November 2022, or should this meeting not proceed then the next available meeting.
 - (b) Those persons making submissions be advised copies of their submissions will be made available at the Council meeting held when their submission is considered.
- 11. If no submissions are made, the matter be reported to Council at the meeting scheduled for 22 November 2022, or should this meeting not proceed then the next available meeting.
- 12. The Chief Executive Officer be authorised and directed to seek payment of and recover the special charge with any interest thereof.

The motion was Carried unanimously.

10.9 Henry Street, Yarra Junction - Intent to Levy a Special Charge

SUMMARY

As part of its 2019 budgetary process, the Federal Government announced a nine year, \$150 Million funding initiative for Yarra Ranges Council to seal roads within the Dandenong Ranges and surrounding areas. This funding program has been named the Roads for the Community Initiative.

At its meeting on 24 September 2019 Council endorsed a list of roads to be constructed using this funding to be facilitated by means of Special Charge Schemes. Henry Street, Yarra Junction was included on this list of roads.

This report recommends affected landowners be notified of Council's Intent to Levy a Special Charge for the construction of Henry Street, Yarra Junction.

Moved: Seconded: Cr Higgins	Cr	McAllister
That		

- 1. The affected landowners be advised of Council's intent to declare a special charge ("the special charge") at its meeting scheduled for 29 November 2022, or should this meeting not proceed then the next available Council meeting, for the purpose of defraying expenses associated with proposed improvement works in Henry Street, Yarra Junction.
- **13.** Subject to any variation of a scheme under Section 166 of the Local Government Act 1989, the amount to be levied under the scheme exclusive of interest payable under Section 172 of the Local Government Act 1989 will be:
 - (a) In total \$228,642 ("the amount to be paid"); comprising of \$192,500 for the cost of works and \$36,142 for financing cost.
 - (b) On each date specified under Section 167 of the Local Government Act 1989 as being the date on which the whole of rates and charges (other than special rates and charges) is due ("the due date") the amount represented by the formula: X/Y where X represents the amount to be paid and Y represents the number of due dates during the period which the scheme will remain in force.
- **14.** In accordance with Section 163 (3) of the Local Government Act 1989 Council specifies that the special charge:
 - (a) Is proposed to be declared for the land in the "designated area" shown on the attached plan.
 - (b) Will be payable in respect of all rateable land within the designated area.
 - (c) Will be assessed and levied as set out in this resolution.
 - (d) Will remain in force for the period commencing on 1 July 2023 and concluding on 30 June 2033.
 - (e) Will expire if the special charge is not levied to each person liable to pay it within 12 months after the day on which the declaration to which the rate or charge relates is made.
- **15.** In accordance with Section 221 of the Local Government Act 1989 the special charge is also proposed to be declared in respect of land within the designated area which is not rateable land and is not Crown land.
- **16.** It is recorded that assessment of the special charge is calculated on the following basis:
 - (a) \$7,000 per development unit
 - (b) Plus financing cost of 3.755% per annum.
 - (c) 100% on a development unit basis as follows.
 - i. Special benefit where a dwelling or building is permitted.
 - *ii.* The degree of special benefit having regard to the use or future use of the land.
- **17.** The amount assessed, based on the assessment factors, is set out

in the attached schedule of costs per property for the scheme.

- **18.** In accordance with section 167 (4) of the Local Government Act 1989, landowners be offered an option to repay their charge as a lump sum payment. For landowners to undertake this option, full payment is to be made by 15 February 2024, and the proportion of the cost to finance the scheme attributable to the property is to be deducted from the total charge.
- **19.** The Chief Executive Officer be authorised to give public notice of the intent to declare the special charge in accordance with Section 163 (1A) and 223 of the Local Government Act 1989 in The Star Mail newspapers and on Council's Internet Website.
- **20.** If required a consultation meeting with appropriate Council Officers, be arranged to discuss any submissions received relating to the Special Charge.
- 21. If submissions are made:
 - (a) Those submissions be considered, and any person (or their representative as specified in their submission) who has requested to be heard in support of their submission be heard, by a meeting of Council scheduled for 29 November 2022, or should this meeting not proceed then the next available meeting.
 - (b) Those persons making submissions be advised copies of their submissions will be made available at the Council meeting held when their submission is considered.
- **22.** If no submissions are made, the matter be reported to Council at the meeting scheduled for 29 November 2022, or should this meeting not proceed then the next available meeting.
- **23.** The Chief Executive Officer be authorised and directed to seek payment of and recover the special charge with any interest thereof.

The motion was Carried unanimously.

10.10 Capital Grants Development Program

SUMMARY

This report outlines the outcome of the 2022/2023 Capital Development Grant Program. Eleven projects are recommended to be funded through this round of the grant program. Funding agreements will be established with each recipient for the delivery of their initiative following formal consideration by Council.

Moved: Cr McAllister Seconded: Cr Fullagar That Council endorse the proposed successful funding applications of the 2022/2023 Capital Development Grant Program to provide the following grant amounts:

- (a) \$28,000.00 to the Lilydale BMX Club
- (b) \$12,500.00 to the Melbourne Radio Control Circuit Racers
- (c) \$17,500.00 to the Healesville Bowling Club
- (d) \$5,000.00 to the Macclesfield Adult Riding Club
- (e) \$18,000.00 to the Upper Yarra Adult Riding Club
- (f) \$14,500.00 to the Ferny Creek Tennis Club
- (g) \$18,000.00 to the Hoddles Creek Cricket Club
- (h) \$15,000.00 to the Lilydale Montrose United Soccer Club
- (i) \$6,625.00 to the Hilltop Recreation Association
- (j) \$11,000.00 to the Lilydale Junior Football Club
- (k) \$25,000.00 to the Monbulk Recreation Reserve Development Group

The motion was Carried unanimously.

11 COUNCILLOR MOTIONS

In accordance with Chapter 3, Division 4, of the Governance Rules developed by Council in accordance with section 60 of the Local Government Act 2020.

There were no Councillor motions listed on the agenda for this meeting.

12 ITEMS THROUGH THE CHAIR

Cr Heenan:

- Acknowledged that 29 September is National Police Remembrance Day. This day honours the dedicated police officers who have died serving their community. It also allows Victoria Police and the community to pay their respects to Victoria Police employees who have lost their lives over the last 12 months through illness or other circumstances.

Cr McAllister:

- Attended the HICCI Annual General meeting and noted the support provided to the communities of Healesville and Yarra Glen. Cr McAllister also noted the current high demand for services, with a corresponding downturn in revenue for the organisation.

Cr Fullagar:

- Along with Cr Todorov, attended the Forgotten Heroes, Stories and Songs from Hills Vietnam Veterans, on 24 September 2022 at the Burrinja Cultural Centre. Cr Fullagar noted the inspired live performance highlighting Vietnam Veterans' stories.

Cr Todorov:

- Attended the Yarra Valley Singers performance in the new Civic Centre. Cr Todorov congratulated the group on their performance and noted how wonderful it was hear the room filled with music.

13 REPORTS FROM DELEGATES

There were no Reports from Delegates received for this meeting.

14 DOCUMENTS FOR SIGNING AND SEALING

In accordance with Clause 87 of the Meeting Procedures and Use of Common Seal Local Law 2015, as prescribed by Section 14(2)(c) of the Local Government Act 2020.

There were no Documents for Signing and Sealing received for this meeting.

15 INFORMAL MEETING OF COUNCILLORS

SUMMARY

Chapter 8, Rule 1, of the Governance Rules requires that records of informal meetings of Councillors must be kept and that the Chief Executive Officer must ensure that a summary of the matters discussed at the meeting tabled at the next convenient Council meeting and recorded in the Minutes of that Council meeting.

An 'informal meeting of Councillors' is defined in the Governance Rules as a meeting of Councillors that:

- is scheduled or planned for the purpose of discussing the business of Council or
- briefing Councillors;
- is attended by at least one member of Council staff; and
- is not a Council meeting, Delegated Committee meeting or Community Asset Committee meeting.

The records for informal meetings of Councillors are attached to the report.

Moved:CrFullagarSeconded: Cr EasthamFullagarThat the records of the Informal Meetings of Councillors, copies of which
are attached to the report, be received and noted.

The motion was Carried unanimously

16 URGENT BUSINESS

There was no Urgent Business received for this meeting.

17 CONFIDENTIAL ITEMS

In accordance with section 66(2)(a) of the Local Government Act 2020.

There were no Confidential Items listed on the agenda for this meeting.

18 DATE OF NEXT MEETING

There being no further business the meeting was declared closed at: 9.02 pm.

Confirmed this day, Tuesday, 11 October 2022.

.....

Councillor Jim Child (Mayor)